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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Forbes Aquatech Limited

Report on the audit of Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Forbes Aquatech Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, 
the profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

	− Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.
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	− Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

	− Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

	− Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

	− Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial 
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)	� We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	� In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

c)	� The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

d)	� In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply 
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act.

e)	� On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 
over financial reporting.

g)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, there is no remuneration paid/
provided by the Company to its directors during the year 
under the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	� The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements.

	 ii.	� The Company did not have any long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses.

	 iii.	� There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

	 iv.	 (a)	� The management has represented that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
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Company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  (b)	� The management has represented, that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the Company from any 
persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and

		  (c)	� Based on audit procedures performed, nothing 
has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 
in (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

	 v.	� The Company has not declared or paid any dividend 
during the year.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 101048W

Kaushal Mehta
Partner

Membership No: 111749
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 28 , 2022
ICAI UDIN: 22111749AJVBWP9664
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the 
members of the Company on the Ind AS financial statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2022, we report that:

(i)	 (a)	 (A)	� The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment.

		  (B)	� The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	� The Company has a regular programme of physical 
verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by 
which all items of Property, Plant and Equipment 
are verified once in every two years. In our opinion, 
the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the said programme, 
certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment were 
physically verified during the year and no material 
discrepancies were observed on such verification.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, there are no immovable 
properties (other than properties where the company 
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the lessee) held in the name of 
the Company.

	 (d)	� The Company has not revalued any of its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 
or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (e)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the 
year or are pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder.

(ii)	 (a)	� The management has conducted physical verification 
of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. 
In our opinion, with regards to the nature and size 
of its inventories, the coverage and procedure of 
such physical verification carried out during the year 
were appropriate. Discrepancies noted during such 
physical verification were less than 10% of respective 
inventory classes. All discrepancies noted during the 
year were properly dealt with in the books of account.

	 (b)	� During the year, the Company did not have any 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five 
crore rupees, in aggregate, from any banks on the 
basis of security of its current assets. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii)	� During the year, the Company has not made any 
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)	� In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans, made investments or given guarantees in 
respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act 2013 are applicable. Accordingly, reporting 
under paragraph (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)	� According to information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in 
accordance with the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any 
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)	� To the best of our knowledge and as explained the Central 
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost 
records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the 
products of the Company.

(vii)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
value added tax, cess and other material statutory 
dues have been regularly deposited during the year 
by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

		�  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed statutory dues referred above 
were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us, outstanding dues of sales tax and income tax 
that have not been deposited by the Company on 
account of disputes are given below *:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount (` In 
lakhs)*

Period to which the amount 
relates (Financial Year) Forum where dispute is pending

The Uttarakhand VAT Act, 2005 Sales Tax 17.97 2008-09 Joint Commissioner of 
Commercial Tax, Dehradun

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 108.27 2007-08 Commissioner Excise

*As represented by Management.
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(viii)		�  According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no transactions have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 
of 1961) which was not recorded in the books of 
account. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order 
is not applicable.

(ix)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the 
Company has not taken any loans from any lender 
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the 
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by 
any bank or financial institution or government or 
any government authority.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, no term loans were obtained 
or utilised during the year by the Company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 (d)	� In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, no funds have been 
raised on short term basis by the Company.

	 (e)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on the audit procedures performed 
by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (f)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on the audit procedures performed 
by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on the audit procedures performed 
by us, the Company did not raise any money by way 
of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly or 
optionally) during the year.

(xi)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the 
company has been noticed or reported during the 
year.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on the audit procedures 
performed by us, no report under sub-section (12) 

of section 143 of the Companies Act in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was filed with the Central 
Government during the year or upto the date of the 
Report.

	 (c)	� As represented to us by the management, no whistle 
blower complaints were received by the Company 
during the year.

(xii)	� In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not a ‘nidhi’ 
company and it has not accepted any deposits. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a), paragraph 3(xii)(b) and 
paragraph 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)	� According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on the audit procedures performed by 
us, transactions with the related parties during the year 
were in compliance with sections 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by 
the applicable accounting standards. Provisions of Section 
177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)	(a)	� In our opinion and based on our examination, the 
company has an internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business.

	 (b)	� We have considered the internal audit reports of the 
company issued till date, for the period under audit.

(xv)	� According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, 
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
provisions of section 192 of the Act and paragraph 3(xv) 
of the Order are not applicable.

(xvi)	(a)	� The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, 
the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking 
Financial or Housing Finance activities during the 
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable.

	 (c)	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the company is not a 
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 (d)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Group (as defined the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016) does not 
have any Core Investment Company (‘CIC’) as part 
of the Group. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable.
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(xvii)	�According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, the 
Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial 
year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) �There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviii) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(xix)	�According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date.

	� We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company. We further state that 
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the 
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on audit procedures performed by 
us, the Company was not required to spend any 
amount in terms of Section 135 of the Act during the 
year. Accordingly, second proviso to sub-section (5) 
of section 135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on audit procedures performed by 
us, the Company did not have any ongoing project 
in terms of Section 135 of the Act during the year. 
Accordingly, provision of sub-section (6) of section 
135 of the said Act and paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(xxi)	�This Report is issued on the standalone financial 
statements of the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) 
of the Order is not applicable.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 101048W

Kaushal Mehta
Partner
Membership No: 111749
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2022
ICAI UDIN: 22111749AJVBWP9664
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Forbes Aquatech Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the 

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that

(1)	� pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2)	� provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and

(3)	� Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

For BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 101048W

Kaushal Mehta
Partner
Membership No:111749
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2022
ICAI UDIN: 22111749AJVBWP9664
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2022

`

ASSETS Notes As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Non-current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 1,59,02,976 1,76,63,658
(b) Capital work-in-progress 8,68,480 -
(c) Intangible assets 5 850 850
(d) Right of Use Assets 6 29,94,470 33,78,243
(e) Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets 8 28,16,645 28,16,645 28,16,645 28,16,645
(f) Tax assets

(i) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 16 85,65,391 85,06,563
(ii) Current Tax Asset (Net) 20 13,87,904 99,53,295 15,23,722 1,00,30,285

(g) Other non-current assets 11 24,57,301 24,27,301
Total Non-current Assets 3,49,94,017 3,63,16,982
Current Assets

(a) Inventories 9 1,94,01,211 2,09,92,479
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 7 5,79,13,438 12,51,92,492
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,23,32,056 7,02,45,494 19,49,825 12,71,42,317

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 20 - -
(d) Other current assets 11 8,62,199 8,08,601

9,05,08,904 14,89,43,397
Total Current Assets 9,05,08,904 14,89,43,397
Total Assets 12,55,02,921 18,52,60,379

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 56,50,500 75,00,500
(b) Other Equity 13 10,50,65,745 15,00,34,153

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 11,07,16,245 15,75,34,653
Total Equity 11,07,16,245 15,75,34,653
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities - - 3,29,173 3,29,173
(b) Provisions 15 7,25,853 8,01,053
(c) Other non-current liabilities 17 3,91,728 3,91,728

Total Non-current Liabilities 11,17,581 15,21,954
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 18 - -
(ii) Lease liabilities 32,43,234 37,32,202
(iii) Trade and other payables:

-	� Total outstanding Dues to small and micro 
enterprises

19 12,83,753 1,58,49,856

-	� Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
Micro and small enterprises

55,96,830 23,87,611

(iv) Other financial liabilities 14 31,38,765 1,32,62,582 26,89,525 2,46,59,194
(b) Provisions 15 22,208 23,108
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 - 10,57,965
(d) Other current liabilities 17 3,84,305 4,63,505

1,36,69,095 2,62,03,772
Total Current Liabilities 1,36,69,095 2,62,03,772
Total Liabilities 1,47,86,676 2,77,25,726
Total Equity and Liabilities 12,55,02,921 18,52,60,379

Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

For Batliboi & Purohit Aslam Karmali
Chartered Accountants Director
ICAI Firm Regn No.101048W DIN: 02291530

Kaushal Mehta Vikram Surendran
Partner Director
Membership No. 111749 DIN: 07322381
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2022
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2022

Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

For Batliboi & Purohit Aslam Karmali
Chartered Accountants Director
ICAI Firm Regn No.101048W DIN: 02291530

Kaushal Mehta Vikram Surendran
Partner Director
Membership No. 111749 DIN: 07322381
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2022

Notes Year 2021-22 Year 2020-21

I Income
Revenue from Operations 21 11,89,30,229 17,39,00,700
Other income and other gains / (losses) 22 1,18,053 86,070
Total Income 11,90,48,282 17,39,86,770

II Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23.1 7,08,39,486 11,87,31,831
Purchases of stock-in-trade 23.2 41,99,506 39,04,559
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 23.3 7,810 14,440
Employee benefits expense 24 49,33,766 45,68,846
Finance costs 25 5,17,599 6,96,442
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 77,55,786 55,52,871
Other expenses 27 3,01,51,074 1,58,49,992
Total expenses 11,84,05,027 14,93,18,981

III Profit before exceptional items and tax 6,43,255 2,46,67,789
Add/ (Less) : Exceptional items - -

IV Profit before tax 6,43,255 2,46,67,789
Less: Tax expense
(1) Current tax 28 2,31,431 71,35,385
(2) Deferred tax (2,34,977) (2,72,806)
(3) MAT credit entitlement - -

(3,546) 68,62,579
V Profit for the year 6,46,801 1,78,05,210
VI Other Comprehensive Income
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurements gains/ (Losses) of the defined benefit plans 5,826 (31,917)
(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1,515) 8,879

4,311 (23,038)
B Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
- -

Total other comprehensive income (A + B) 4,311 (23,038)
Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) 6,51,112 1,77,82,172
Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic (in `) 30 0.92 20.88

(2) Diluted (in `) 0.92 20.88

Financial 
Statements
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 6,43,255 2,46,67,789
Adjustments for:
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 5,17,599 6,96,442
Interest Income (1,33,003) (1,16,563)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 5,826 (31,917)
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 77,55,786 55,52,871

87,89,463 3,07,68,622
Movements in assets & liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 6,72,79,054 4,51,93,934
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 15,91,268 43,14,377
(Increase)/decrease in current Other Assets (53,598) (2,36,195)
(Increase)/decrease in non current financial Other Assets (30,000) (15,00,000)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables (1,13,56,884) (50,25,324)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (76,100) (1,32,908)
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities 3,70,040 (11,68,327)

5,77,23,780 4,14,45,557
Cash generated from operations 6,65,13,243 7,22,14,179
Income taxes paid (9,78,944) (31,23,077)
Net cash generated by operating activities 6,55,34,299 6,90,91,102

B Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 1,33,003 1,16,563
Payments for property, plant and equipment and Capital Work in progress (14,64,215) (62,300)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,625 10,52,010
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities (13,28,587) 11,06,273

C Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings (refer note 37) - (64,19,763)
Proceeds paid on Buy back of equity shares (3,88,50,000) (4,82,50,000)
Tax Paid on Buy Back of equity Shares (86,19,520) (1,06,57,920)
Lease rental Payments (63,53,961) (33,71,013)
Interest paid - (1,55,374)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,38,23,481) (6,88,54,070)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,03,82,231 13,43,305
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,49,825 6,06,520
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,23,32,056 19,49,825

Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

For Batliboi & Purohit Aslam Karmali
Chartered Accountants Director
ICAI Firm Regn No.101048W DIN: 02291530

Kaushal Mehta Vikram Surendran
Partner Director
Membership No. 111749 DIN: 07322381
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2022

10

New Standards. Enriched Lives.



Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended March 31, 2022

A.	 Equity share capital
	 Current Year: April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

Particulars Year 2021-22

Balance as at April 1, 2021 75,00,500
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period -
Changes in equity share capital during the year on account of Buy back of shares (18,50,000)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 56,50,500

	 Previous Year: April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021
Particulars Year 2021-22

Balance as at April 1, 2020 1,00,00,500
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period -
Changes in equity share capital during the year on account of Buy back of shares (25,00,000)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 75,00,500

Financial 
Statements

     Annual Report 2021-22 11



St
at

em
en

t o
f C

ha
ng

es
 in

 E
qu

ity
 (C

on
td

.)
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

2

B
.	

O
th

er
 E

qu
ity

`

At
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

f t
he

 c
om

pa
ny

R
es

er
ve

s 
an

d 
su

rp
lu

s
Ite

m
s 

of
 O

th
er

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

co
m

e

To
ta

l O
th

er
 

Eq
ui

ty
G

en
er

al
 re

se
rv

e
C

ap
ita

l 
R

ed
em

pt
io

n 
R

es
er

ve

R
et

ai
ne

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
To

ta
l

O
th

er
 it

em
s 

of
 o

th
er

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e-

 
R

em
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f 

de
fin

ed
 b

en
efi

t

To
ta

l

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r:
 A

pr
il 

1,
 2

02
1 

to
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

2
B

al
an

ce
 a

t A
pr

il 
1,

 2
02

1
2,

55
,0

0,
00

0
25

,0
0,

00
0

12
,2

0,
55

,9
23

15
,0

0,
55

,9
23

(2
1,

77
0)

(2
1,

77
0)

15
,0

0,
34

,1
53

Pr
ofi

t f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

6,
46

,8
01

6,
46

,8
01

-
-

6,
46

,8
01

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r, 

ne
t o

f i
nc

om
e 

ta
x

-
-

-
-

4,
31

1
4,

31
1

4,
31

1
To

ta
l c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

-
-

6,
46

,8
01

6,
46

,8
01

4,
31

1
4,

31
1

6,
51

,1
12

U
til

is
ed

 fo
r B

uy
 B

ac
k 

of
 S

ha
re

s
-

-
(3

,7
0,

00
,0

00
)

(3
,7

0,
00

,0
00

)
-

-
(3

,7
0,

00
,0

00
)

Ta
x 

Pa
id

/ P
ay

ab
le

 o
n 

Bu
y 

ba
ck

 o
f s

ha
re

s
-

-
(8

6,
19

,5
20

)
(8

6,
19

,5
20

)
-

-
(8

6,
19

,5
20

)
Tr

an
sf

er
 to

 C
ap

ita
l r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
re

se
rv

e 
on

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f B

uy
ba

ck
 

of
 S

ha
re

s
-

18
,5

0,
00

0
(1

8,
50

,0
00

)
-

-
-

-

B
al

an
ce

 a
t M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

2
2,

55
,0

0,
00

0
43

,5
0,

00
0

7,
52

,3
3,

20
4

10
,5

0,
83

,2
04

(1
7,

45
9)

(1
7,

45
9)

10
,5

0,
65

,7
45

Pr
ev

io
us

 Y
ea

r:
 A

pr
il 

1,
 2

02
0 

to
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

1
B

al
an

ce
 a

t A
pr

il 
1,

 2
02

0
2,

55
,0

0,
00

0
-

16
,3

1,
58

,6
33

18
,8

6,
58

,6
33

1,
26

8
1,

26
8

18
,8

6,
59

,9
01

Pr
ofi

t f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

1,
78

,0
5,

21
0

1,
78

,0
5,

21
0

-
-

1,
78

,0
5,

21
0

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r, 

ne
t o

f i
nc

om
e 

ta
x

-
-

-
-

(2
3,

03
8)

(2
3,

03
8)

(2
3,

03
8)

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

-
1,

78
,0

5,
21

0
1,

78
,0

5,
21

0
(2

3,
03

8)
(2

3,
03

8)
1,

77
,8

2,
17

2
U

til
is

ed
 fo

r B
uy

 B
ac

k 
of

 S
ha

re
s

-
-

(4
,5

7,
50

,0
00

)
(4

,5
7,

50
,0

00
)

-
-

(4
,5

7,
50

,0
00

)
Ta

x 
Pa

id
 o

n 
Bu

y 
ba

ck
 o

f s
ha

re
s

-
-

(1
,0

6,
57

,9
20

)
(1

,0
6,

57
,9

20
)

-
-

(1
,0

6,
57

,9
20

)
Tr

an
sf

er
 to

 C
ap

ita
l r

ed
em

pt
io

n 
re

se
rv

e 
on

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f B

uy
ba

ck
 

of
 S

ha
re

s
-

25
,0

0,
00

0
(2

5,
00

,0
00

)
-

-
-

-

B
al

an
ce

 a
t M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

1
2,

55
,0

0,
00

0
25

,0
0,

00
0

12
,2

0,
55

,9
23

15
,0

0,
55

,9
23

(2
1,

77
0)

(2
1,

77
0)

15
,0

0,
34

,1
53

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s
3

Th
e 

no
te

s 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 a
bo

ve
 fo

rm
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

Fo
r a

nd
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s.

Fo
r B

at
lib

oi
 &

 P
ur

oh
it

K
au

sh
al

 M
eh

ta
A

sl
am

 K
ar

m
al

i
Vi

kr
am

 S
ur

en
dr

an
C

ha
rte

re
d 

Ac
co

un
ta

nt
s

Pa
rtn

er
D

ire
ct

or
D

ire
ct

or
IC

AI
 F

irm
 R

eg
n 

N
o.

10
10

48
W

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

N
o.

 1
11

74
9

D
IN

: 0
22

91
53

0
D

IN
: 0

73
22

38
1

Pl
ac

e:
 M

um
ba

i
D

at
e:

 M
ay

 2
8,

 2
02

2

12

New Standards. Enriched Lives.



1.	 Reporting entity
	� Forbes Aquatech Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Company 

domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at No. 
143, C-4, Bommasandra Industrial Area, Off. Hosur Road, 
Bangalore – 560099. The Company is a 89.49% subsidiary 
of M/s Eureka Forbes Limited, a Company incorporated 
under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily 
involved in manufacturing of Non electric water purifier.

	� The manufacturing facility of the Company is located at 
Lal Tappar Industrial Area in the State of Uttarakhand.

2.	 Basis of preparation
a.	 Statement of compliance
	� These financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as 
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, 
(the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	� The financial statements were authorised for issue by the 
Company’s Board of Directors on 28th May, 2022.

	� Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included 
in Note 3.

b.	 Functional and presentation currency
	� These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees 

(`), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

c.	 Basis of measurement
	� The financial statements have been prepared on the 

historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets 
and liabilities and defined benefit plan assets measured 
at fair value.

d.	 Use of estimates and judgements
	� In preparing these financial statements, management has 

made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

	� Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively.

	 Judgements
	� Information about judgements made in applying 

accounting policies that have the most significant effects 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is 
included in the following notes:

	− Note 3(c)(iii) and 4 – useful life of Property, plant and 
equipment

	− Note 3(d)(iii) and 5 – useful life of Intangible assets

	− Note 3(g) and 24 – employee benefit plans

	− Note 3(h) and 31 – provisions and contingent liabilities

	− Note 3(l) and 28 – Income taxes

	− Note 3(j) and 35 – Lease classification

	 Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
	� Information about assumptions and estimation 

uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2022 is 
included in the following notes:

	− Note 16 – recognition of deferred tax assets: availability 
of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried 
forward can be used;

	− Note 31 – recognition and measurement of provisions 
and contingencies: key assumptions about the 
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

e.	 Measurement of fair values
	� A number of the Company’s accounting policies and 

disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial assets and liabilities.

	� The Company has an established control framework with 
respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes the 
management that has overall responsibility for overseeing 
all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 
fair values, and reports directly to the Board of Directors.

	� The f inance team regularly reviews signif icant 
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

	� Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s 
Board of Directors.

	� Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair 
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows.

	− Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities.

	− Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in 
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived 
from prices).

	− Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based 
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

	� When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, 
the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an 
asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised 
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy 
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement.

	� The Company recognises transfers between levels of 
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 
during which the change has occurred.

Financial 
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	� Further information about the assumptions made in 
measuring fair values is included in the following note:

	− Note 39 – financial instruments.

3.	 Significant accounting polices
a.	 Foreign currency transactions
	� Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the 

functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions.

	� Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated into the functional currency at 
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in 
a foreign currency are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency 
are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in 
profit or loss, except exchange differences arising from the 
translation of the equity investments which are recognised 
at fair value through OCI (FVOCI).

b.	 Financial instruments
	 i.	 Recognition and initial measurement
		�  Trade receivables are initially recognised when they 

are originated. All other financial assets and financial 
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

		�  A financial asset or financial liability is initially 
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair 
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition 
or issue.

	 ii.	  Classification and subsequent measurement
		  Financial assets
		�  On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as 

measured at

	− amortised cost;

	− FVOCI – debt investment;

	− FVOCI – equity investment; or

	− FVTPL

		�  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to 
their initial recognition, except if and in the period the 
Company changes its business model for managing 
financial assets.

		�  A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if 
it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

	− the asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash flows; and

	− the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

		�  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets 
both of the following conditions and is not designated 
as at FVTPL:

	− the asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

	− the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

		�  The Company does not have any financial assets 
within this category.

		�  On initial recognition of an equity investment that 
is not held for trading, the Company has elected to 
present subsequent changes in the investment’s 
fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI – equity 
investment). This election is made on an investment‑ 
by‑ investment basis.

		�  All financial assets not classified as measured at 
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. The Company does not have 
any financial assets within this category.

		�  Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and 
gains and losses

Financial 
assets at 
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured 
at fair value. Net gains and losses, 
including any interest or dividend income, 
are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial 
assets at 
amotised 
cost

These assets are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortised cost is 
reduced by impairment losses. Interest 
income, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impairment are recognised 
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
derecognition is recognised in profit or 
loss.

Debt 
investments 
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Interest income 
under the effective interest method, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or 
loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, 
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are 
reclassified to profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.)
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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Equity 
investments 
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured 
at fair value. Dividends are recognised 
as income in profit or loss unless the 
dividend clearly represents a recovery of 
part of the cost of the investment. Other 
net gains and losses are recognised in 
OCI and are not reclassified to profit or 
loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent 
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at 
amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held‑ 
for‑ trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated 
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at 
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains 
and losses, including any interest expense, are 
recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. Interest expense and 
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
also recognised in profit or loss. The Company does 
not have any fixed liabilities under the category of 
FVTPL.

	 iii.	  Derecogniton
		  Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction 
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or 
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it 
transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised.

		  Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability 
when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability 
when its terms are modified and the cash flows under 
the modified terms are substantially different. In this 
case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
extinguished and the new financial liability with 
modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

	 iv.	 Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, 
and only when, the Company currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

c.	 Property, plant and equipment
	 i.	 Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured 
at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises its purchase price, including import duties 
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting 
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable 
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for 
its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling 
and removing the item and restoring the site on which 
it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant 
and equipment comprises the cost of materials and 
direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the item to working condition for its intended 
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

	 ii.	  Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is 
probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

	 iii.	  Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of 
property, plant and equipment less their estimated 
residual values over their estimated useful lives using 
the straight-line method, and is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant 
and equipment for the current and comparative 
periods are as follows:
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Asset Management estimate of useful life Useful life as per Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013

Plant and machinery (including moulds) 15 years 15 years
Office equipments 5 years 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years
Computers 3 years 3 years
Computer server 6 years 6 years
Vehicles- Motor car 5 years 8 years
Electric fittings 10 years 10 years

		�  Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted 
if appropriate. Based on internal assessment and 
consequent advice, the management believes 
that its estimates of useful lives as given above 
best represent the period over which management 
expects to use these assets.

		�  Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on 
a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which 
asset is ready for use (disposed off).

d.	  Intangible assets
	 i.	  Acquired intangible
		�  Intangible assets comprise purchased technical know 

how are initially measured at cost. Such intangible 
assets are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.

	 ii.	 Subsequent expenditure
		�  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 

increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure, including expenditure on internally 
generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred.

	 iii.	  Amortisation
		�  Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of 

intangible assets less their estimated residual values 
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method, and is included in depreciation and 
amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss.

		�  Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 10 
years for technical know how and 3 years for others.

		�  Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at the end of each financial year and 
adjusted if appropriate.

e.	  Inventories
	� Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net 

realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the 
weighted average method, and includes expenditure 
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or 

conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing 
them to their present location and condition. In the case 
of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, 
cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production 
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

	� Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.

	� The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined 
with reference to the selling prices of related finished 
products.

	� Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the 
production of finished products are not written down below 
cost except in cases where material prices have declined 
and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products 
will exceed their net realisable value.

	� The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made 
on an item-by-item basis.

f.	  Impairment
	 i.	  Impairment of financial instruments
		�  The Company recognises loss allowances for 

expected credit loss on:

	− financial assets measured at amortised cost.

		�  The Company measures loss allowances at an 
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, 
except for the following, which are measured as 12 
month expected credit losses:

	− bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk 
of default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial instrument) has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition.

		�  Loss allowances for trade receivables are always 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected 
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the 
expected credit losses that result from all possible 
default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. The Company follows ‘simplif ied 
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss 
allowance for trade receivables. The application of 
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simplified approach does not require the Company 
to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes 
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected 
credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition.

		�  12-month expected credit losses are the portion of 
expected credit losses that result from default events 
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the 
instrument is less than 12 months).

		�  In all cases, the maximum period considered when 
estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is 
exposed to credit risk.

		�  When determining whether the credit risk of a 
financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating expected credit 
losses, the Company considers reasonable and 
supportable information that is relevant and available 
without undue cost or effort. This includes both 
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, 
based on the Company’s historical experience and 
informed credit assessment and including forward‑ 
looking information.

	 ii.	  Impairment of non-financial assets
		�  The Company’s non-financial assets, other than 

inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, 
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

		�  For impairment testing, assets that do not generate 
independent cash inflows are grouped together into 
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents 
the smallest group of assets that generates cash 
inflows that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or CGUs.

		�  The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual 
asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on 
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the 
asset).

		�  The Company’s corporate assets do not generate 
independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of 
a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined 
for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

		�  An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is 

allocated the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of 
CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

		�  An impairment loss in respect of assets other 
than goodwill for which impairment loss has been 
recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to 
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

g.	  Employee benefits
	 i.	  Short-term employee benefits
		�  Short-term employee benefit obligations are 

measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 
is recognised for the amount expected to be paid 
e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company 
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
this amount as a result of past service provided by 
the employee, and the amount of obligation can be 
estimated reliably.

	 ii.	  Defined contribution plans
		�  A defined contribution plan is a post-employment 

benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and will have no 
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 
The Company makes specified monthly contributions 
towards Government administered provident fund 
and Employee State Insurance scheme. Obligations 
for contributions to defined contribution plans are 
recognised as an employee benefit expense in 
profit or loss in the periods during which the related 
services are rendered by employees.

		�  Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future 
payments is available.

	 iii.	  Defined benefit plans
		�  A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit 

plan other than a defined contribution plan. The 
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined 
benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned in the 
current and prior periods, discounting that amount 
and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

		�  The calculation of defined benefit obligation is 
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the 
projected unit credit method.
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		�  Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, 
which comprise actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net 
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation 
at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net 
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account 
any changes in the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions 
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and 
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are 
recognised in profit or loss.

		�  When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a 
plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past 
service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company 
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a 
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

	 iv.	  Other long-term employee benefits
		�  The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-

term employee benefits other than post-employment 
benefits is the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is 
discounted to determine its present value. The 
obligation is measured on the basis of an annual 
independent actuarial valuation using the projected 
unit credit method. Remeasurements gains or losses 
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which 
they arise.

h.	 Provisions and contingent liabilities
	� A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the 

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assumptions of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of 
discount is recognized as finance cost.

	� The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate 
of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

	� When some or all of the economic benefits required to 
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 
third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and 
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

	� A provision for onerous contract is measured at the present 
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the 

contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the 
contract.

	� Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from 
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where 
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, 
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless 
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

i.	 Revenue
	� Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary 

activities is recognised at the ‘transaction price’ when the 
goods are ‘transferred’ to the customer. The ‘transaction 
price’ is the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised 
goods to a customer, excluding amounts collected on 
behalf of third parties (for example, goods and service tax). 
The consideration promised in a contract with a customer 
may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both. The 
goods are considered as ‘transferred’ when the customer 
obtains control of those goods.

	� Revenue from services are recognised in the accounting 
period in which service are rendered. For fixed price 
contracts, revenue is recognised based on actual services 
provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion 
of the total services to be provided.

	� Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive 
payment is established and known.

j.	 Leases
	 As a lessee:
	� The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 - Leases, with 

effect from April 01, 2019. The Company did not have any 
impact on transition date ie. April 01, 2019 on account of 
adoption of Ind AS 116.

	� In the statement of profit and loss for the year, instead 
of rent expenses (as accounted under previous periods), 
amortisation of right of use has been accounted under 
depreciation and amortisation expenses and unwinding 
of discount on lease liabilities has been accounted under 
finance cost. The impact on the profits / (loss) for the year 
due the above change in accounting policy is additional 
expense of `3.91 lakhs.

	� The Company’s leases primarily consist of leases of land 
and office premises. The Company assesses whether a 
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A 
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration.

	� At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company 
recognizes a ROU and a corresponding lease liability for 
all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for 
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term 
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leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and/
or low value leases, the Company recognises the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease. Certain lease arrangements 
includes the options to extend or terminate the lease 
before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease 
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably 
certain that they will be exercised.

	� The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Currently, ROU assets are being 
amortised over a period of 3-5 years based on lease term 
being lower of lease term and estimated useful life of 
underlying assets.

	� Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately 
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing activities in statement of cash 
flows.

	 As a lessor:
	� Lease income from operating leases where the Company 

is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured 
to increase in line with expected general inflation to 
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.

k.	 Recognition of interest income or expense
	� Interest income or expense is recognised using the 

effective interest method.

	� The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument to:

	− the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

	− the amortised cost of the financial liability.

	� In calculating interest income and expense, the effective 
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of 
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the 
amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets 
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial 
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial 
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the 
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

l.	  Income tax
	� Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is 

recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it 
relates to a business combination or to an item recognised 
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

	 i.	  Current tax
		�  Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or 

receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. The amount of current 
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount 
expected to be paid or received after considering 
the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is 
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

		�  Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset 
only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise 
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously.

	 ii.	  Deferred tax
		�  Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary 

differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried 
forward tax losses and tax credits.

		�  Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used. The 
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, 
in case of a history of recent losses, the Company 
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent 
that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences 
or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available against which such 
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax 
assets – unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed 
at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced 
to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable 
respectively that the related tax benefit will be 
realised.

		�  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date.

		�  The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, 
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
Company, or on different tax entities, but they intend 
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net 
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basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised 
simultaneously.

m.	  Earnings per share
	� The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per 

share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
after adjusting for the effects of all potential dilutive 
ordinary shares.

n.	 Statement of cash flows:
	� Cash Flows are reported using indirect method, where 

by profit /loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of non cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash 
flow for the year are classified by operating, investing and 
financing activities.

o.	� Recent amendments to Indian Accounting 
Standards:

	� On March 23, 2022, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) 
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 01, 2022, 
as below:

	 Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations
	� The amendment clarifies that while applying the acquisition 

method for recognition, the assets and liabilities taken 
over, in a business combination, must meet the definitions 
of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for 
Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards 
(Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. 
The Company does not expect the amendment to have 
any impact in its financial statements.

	 Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment
	� The amendment requires that excess of net sale proceeds 

of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not 
be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the 
directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of 
an item of property, plant, and equipment. The Company 
does not expect the amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statements.

	� Ind AS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

	� The amendment clarifies in relation to onerous contracts 
that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that 
relate directly to the contract which consist of incremental 
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 
labour, materials) and an allocation of other costs that 
relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The Company does 
not expect the amendment to have any significant impact 
in its financial statements.

	 Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments
	� The amendment clarifies that while determining the fees 

paid (net of fees received) when a borrower applies the 
‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to 
derecognise a financial liability, the borrower to include 
only fees paid or received between the borrower and 
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the 
borrower or lender on the other‘s behalf. The Company 
does not expect the amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statements.
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Note 5 - Other intangible assets
 ` 

Cost or deemed cost  Technical 
Knowhow  

 Computers 
Software Total

As at April 1, 2020        30,00,000            17,000        30,17,000 
Additions                     -                      -                      -   
As at March 31, 2021        30,00,000            17,000        30,17,000 
Additions                     -                      -                      -   
As at March 31, 2022        30,00,000            17,000        30,17,000 
Amortisation
As at April 1, 2020        30,00,000            16,150        30,16,150 
Charge for the year                     -                      -                      -   
As at March 31, 2021        30,00,000            16,150        30,16,150 
Charge for the year                     -                      -                      -   
As at March 31, 2022        30,00,000            16,150        30,16,150 
Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2021               -               850             850 
As at March 31, 2022               -               850             850 

Note 6 - Right of Use Assets
`

Cost or deemed cost Building Total

As at April 1, 2020 1,02,21,202 1,02,21,202
Additions/ (Deletion) (6,46,862) (6,46,862)
As at March 31, 2021 95,74,340 95,74,340
Additions/ (Deletion) 50,18,221 50,18,221
As at March 31, 2022 1,45,92,561 1,45,92,561
Amortisation
As at April 1, 2020 30,74,430 30,74,430
Charge for the year 31,21,667 31,21,667
As at March 31, 2021 61,96,097 61,96,097
Charge for the year 54,01,994 54,01,994
As at March 31, 2022 1,15,98,091 1,15,98,091
Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2021 33,78,243 33,78,243
As at March 31, 2022 29,94,470 29,94,470

Note 7 - Trade receivables
`

Particulars
Current

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Trade receivables - Others
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 39,47,924 115
Unsecured, Debts due from related parties 5,39,65,514 12,51,92,377
Unsecured Doubtful - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total 5,79,13,438 12,51,92,492
Total 5,79,13,438 12,51,92,492
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Note 7 - Trade receivables (Contd.)
The ageing of trade receivables as on 31.03.2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than  
6 months

6 months -  
1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than  

3 Year
Total 

Outstanding

(i)	� Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

1,24,17,471 4,54,95,967 - - - - 5,79,13,438

(ii)	� Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(iii)	�Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - - - - -

(iv)	�Disputed Trade Receivables– 
considered good

- - - - - - -

(v)	� Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(vi)	�Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - - - - -

The ageing of trade receivables as on 31.03.2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than  
6 months

6 months -  
1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More Than  

3 Year
Total 

Outstanding

(i)	� Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

3,69,52,797 8,82,39,695 - - - - 12,51,92,492

(ii)	� Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(iii)	�Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - - - - -

(iv)	�Disputed Trade Receivables– 
considered good

- - - - - - -

(v)	� Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(vi)	�Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - - - - -

Note 8 - Other financial assets
`

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Security deposits - unsecured considered good - to related parties 10,000 10,000
Security deposits - unsecured considered good 28,06,645 28,06,645
Security deposits - Others - -

28,16,645 28,16,645
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Note 9 - Inventories
`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 1,93,60,982 2,09,44,440
Finished goods 40,229 48,039

1,94,01,211 2,09,92,479

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes ̀  NIL (during 2020-2021: ̀  NIL) in respect of write-downs of inventory 
to net realisable value.

Note 10 - Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be 
reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Balances with Banks in current accounts 1,23,31,873 19,49,642
Earmarked balances (Dividend account) - -
Cash on hand 183 183
Others
Fixed Deposit with HDFC Bank (With maturity less than 3 months) - -
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,23,32,056 19,49,825

Note 11 - Other assets
`

Non Current Current

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Capital Advances - - - -
Prepaid expenses - - 83,365 1,02,701
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 24,57,301 24,27,301 5,46,354 4,39,704
Advance to Supplier - - 2,32,480 2,66,196
Total 24,57,301 24,27,301 8,62,199 8,08,601

Note 12 - Equity Share Capital
`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Equity share capital 56,50,500 75,00,500
Total 56,50,500 75,00,500
Authorised Share capital:
20,00,000 fully paid equity shares of ` 10 each 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Issued subscribed and fully paid up:
565,050 fully paid equity shares of ` 10 each (as at March 31, 2021: 750,050) 56,50,500 75,00,500

56,50,500 75,00,500



Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.)
for the year ended March 31, 2022

Financial 
Statements

     Annual Report 2021-22 25

Note 12 - Equity Share Capital (Contd.)
Note 12.1 - Fully paid equity shares - Reconciliation of nuber of shares

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Balance at April 1, 2020 10,00,050 1,00,00,500
Add: Issued during the year - -
Less: Shares extinguished on buy back 2,50,000 25,00,000
Less: Bought back during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 7,50,050 75,00,500
Add: Issued during the year - -
Less: Bought back during the year 1,85,000 18,50,000
Less: Shares extinguished on buy back - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 5,65,050 56,50,500

a.	� Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares : The Company has one class of Equity shares. Each fully 
paid equity share has a par value of ̀  10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share with a right to receive 
per share dividend declared by the Company. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company (after distribution of all preferential amounts) in the proportion of equity shares held by 
the shareholders.

b.	� Board of Director’s in their Meeting held on December 03, 2021 had approved maximum 25% of existing shares as on that 
date for buy back at the rate of `210/- per share. Accordingly the Company bought back 1,85,000 Equity shares for an 
aggregate amount of `388.50 Lacs. The Equity shares bought back were extinguished on December 30, 2021.

Note 12.2 - Details of shares held by each Shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number of shares 
held

% holding in the 
class of shares

Number of shares 
held

% holding in the 
class of shares

Fully paid equity shares of `10 each
Eureka Forbes Limited (formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions 
Ltd) Holding Company w.e.f. February 01, 2022

5,00,000 88.49% - -

Filtrex Holding Pte Ltd. 65,000 11.50% 2,50,000 33.33%
Eureka Forbes Limited (Erstwhile) Holding Company up to 
January 31, 2022

- - 5,00,000 66.66%

5,65,000 99.99% 7,50,000 99.99%

Note 12.3 - Details of shares held by each promoter and changes in holding from previous year

Promoter Name
As at March 31, 2022

Number of  
shares held 

% holding in the 
class of shares

% Change  
during the year

Fully paid equity shares of `10 each
Eureka Forbes Ltd. (formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd)             5,00,000 88.49% 88.49%
Filtrex Holding Pte Ltd.                65,000 11.50% -74%

Note 12.4 - Details of shares held by holding company

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number of  
shares held

% holding in the 
class of shares

Number of  
shares held

% holding in the 
class of shares

Fully paid equity shares of `10 each
Eureka Forbes Limited (formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions 
Ltd) Holding Company w.e.f. February 01, 2022

5,00,000 50,00,000 - -

Eureka Forbes Limited (Erstwhile) Holding Company up to 
January 31, 2022

- - 5,00,000 50,00,000
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Note 13 - Other equity
`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

General reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 2,55,00,000 2,55,00,000
Balance at end of the year 2,55,00,000 2,55,00,000
Capital Redemption reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 25,00,000 -
Add: transfer from retained earnings for Buy back of shares 18,50,000 25,00,000
Balance at end of the year 43,50,000 25,00,000
Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year 12,20,55,923 16,31,58,633
Add/ (less): Profit/ (loss) for the year 6,46,801 1,78,05,210
Less: Transfer to Capital redemption reserves on account of Buy-back of Shares (18,50,000) (25,00,000)
Less: Utilised for Buy Back of Equity Shares (3,70,00,000) (4,57,50,000)
Less: Tax Paid/ payable on Buy back of shares (86,19,520) (1,06,57,920)
Balance at end of the year 7,52,33,204 12,20,55,923
Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at beginning of year (21,770) 1,268
Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of defined benefit obligation net of 
income tax

4,311 (23,038)

Balance at end of the year (17,459) (21,770)
Total 10,50,65,745 15,00,34,153

Note 13 A - Capital management:
The company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to 
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in Note 18 offset by cash and bank balances) 
and equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as detailed in Notes 12 to 13).

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Debt (i) - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 1,23,32,056 19,49,825
Net debt - -
Equity (ii) 11,07,16,245 15,75,34,653
Net debt to equity ratio (%) NA NA
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Note 14 - Other financial liabilities
`

Particulars
Non Current Current

As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

(a)	 Others :-
	 -	 Dues to employees - - 7,27,540 7,30,582
	 -	 Unclaimed Dividend - - 1,100 1,100
	 -	 Dues on account of other contractual liabilities - - 24,10,125 19,57,843
Total - - 31,38,765 26,89,525

Note 15 - Provisions
`

Particulars
Non Current Current

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Employee benefits
- Compensated Absences  1,39,905  2,48,128  8,490 10,634
- Gratuity  5,85,948  5,52,925  13,718 12,474
Total  7,25,853  8,01,053  22,208 23,108

Note 15.1 - Provision for Compensated Absences
Based on past experience the company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment 
within the next 12 Months.

Note 16 - Deferred tax balances
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Deferred tax assets 1,05,43,824 1,08,80,127
Deferred tax liabilities (19,78,433) (23,73,564)
Net 85,65,391 85,06,563
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Note 16 - Deferred tax balances (Contd.)

Particulars Property, plant 
and equipment

Provisions - Impact of 
expenditure charged to 

the profit and loss in the 
current year but allowed 
for tax on payment basis

On Account of 
Lease liability

MAT Credit 
Entitlement Total

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Net balance April 1, 2019 (27,74,914) 2,43,184 - 1,89,35,212 1,64,03,482
Recognised in profit or (loss) 1,72,726 23,073 1,08,890 - 3,04,689
MAT Credit - - - (54,60,128) (54,60,128)
Recognised in other comprehensive income - - - - -
Net balance April 1, 2020 (26,02,188) 2,66,257 1,08,890 1,34,75,084 1,12,48,043
Recognised in profit or (loss) 2,28,624 (36,975) 81,157 - 2,72,806
MAT Credit - - - (30,14,286) (30,14,286)
Recognised in other comprehensive income - - - - -
Closing balance March 31, 2021 (23,73,564) 2,29,282 1,90,047 1,04,60,798 85,06,563
Recognised in profit or (loss) 3,95,131 (34,786) (1,25,368) - 2,34,977
MAT Credit - - - (1,76,149) (1,76,149)
Recognised in other comprehensive income - - - - -
Closing balance March 31, 2022 (19,78,433) 1,94,496 64,679 1,02,84,649 85,65,391

Note 17 - Other Liabilities
`

Particulars
Non Current Current

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(a)	 Deposit from employees for company's assets 3,91,728 3,91,728 - -
(b)	 Advances from customers - - 1,20,060 51,730
(c)	� Statutory liabilities (Contributions to PF, Pension, ESIC, 

withholding Taxes, VAT etc.)
- - 2,64,245 4,11,775

Total 3,91,728 3,91,728 3,84,305 4,63,505

Note 18 - Current Borrowings

Particulars
Non Current

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Secured - at amortised cost
(a)	 Loans repayable on demand 
-	 from banks (Cash credit/ Buyers credit)  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Note 19 - Trade payables

Particulars
Current

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Trade payables (including acceptances) 67,79,292 1,81,92,623
(Refer note below for dues to Micro and Small Enterprises)
Trade payables to related parties (Refer note 33) 1,01,291 44,844
Total 68,80,583 1,82,37,467
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The average credit period for purchase of certain goods (other than MSME) is 45 days. The Company has financial risk 
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

Note 19.1 - Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(i)	 Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on year end 12,83,753 1,58,49,856
(ii)	 Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on year end 74,368 74,368
(iii)	�The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the MSME 

suppliers beyond the appointed day
- -

(iv)	�The amount of interest due and payable for the year (without adding the interest under 
MSME Development Act)

- -

(v)	 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on year end - -
(vi)	The amount of interest due and payable to be disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

The ageing of trade and other payables as on 31.03.2022.
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than  
1 years 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total 

Outstanding

MSME 12,83,753 - - - - 12,83,753
Others 50,05,980 - - - - 50,05,980
Disputed Dues - Others - - - - 5,90,850 5,90,850
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -

The ageing of trade and other payables as on 31.03.2021.
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 
1 years 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total Outstanding

MSME 1,58,49,856 - - - - 1,58,49,856
Others 17,85,036 11,725 - - - 17,96,761
Disputed Dues - Others - - - - 5,90,850 5,90,850
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -

Note 20 - Current tax assets and liabilities
`

Particulars
Non Current Current

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Current tax assets (Net)
Advance income-tax (Net of provision of taxation) 13,87,904 15,23,722 - -
Total 13,87,904 15,23,722 - -
Current tax Liabilities (Net)
Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance Tax) - - - 10,57,965

- - - 10,57,965

Note 19 - Trade payables (Contd.)
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Note 21 - Revenue from operations
`

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

(a)	 Sale of product
	 -	 Finished Goods 9,25,32,551 16,05,16,142
	 -	 Traded Goods 54,87,398 49,04,928
(b)	 Sale of services 1,95,88,574 81,38,226
(c)	 Other operating revenues
	 Scrap sales 13,21,706 3,41,404
Total 11,89,30,229 17,39,00,700

Note 22 - Other Income and other gains/ (losses)
`

Other Income Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost:
Bank deposits 1,33,003 1,16,563
Misc Income - 83,778

1,33,003 2,00,341

`

Other gains/(losses) Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) (14,950) (1,14,271)
(14,950) (1,14,271)

1,18,053 86,070

Note 23 - Cost of materials consumed
23.1	Material consumption

`

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

23.1	 Material consumption
		  Raw Materials
		  Opening Stock 2,09,44,440 2,52,44,377
		  Add: Purchases 6,92,56,028 11,44,31,894
		  Less: Closing Stock 1,93,60,982 2,09,44,440

7,08,39,486 11,87,31,831
23.2	 Purchase of traded products 41,99,506 39,04,559
23.3	 Finished Goods
		  Opening Stock 48,039 62,479
		  Less: Closing Stock 40,229 48,039
		  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade. 7,810 14,440
		  Total 7,50,46,802 12,26,50,830
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Note 24 - Employee benefits expense
`

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Salaries and Wages 39,09,934 40,76,956
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,94,625 2,96,606
Staff Welfare Expenses 7,29,207 1,95,284
Total 49,33,766 45,68,846

Note 25 - Finance costs
`

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Interest on bank cash credit - 1,55,374
Interest on lease liabilities 5,17,599 5,41,068
Other borrowing costs - -
Total 5,17,599 6,96,442

Note 26 - Depreciation and amortisation expense
`

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 4) 23,53,792 24,31,204
Depreciation on Right of Use of Assets (Note 6) 54,01,994 31,21,667
Total depreciation and amortisation 77,55,786 55,52,871

Note 27 - Other expenses
`

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Electricity 8,70,616 3,96,640
Rent 21,243 21,245
Repairs and Maintenance :-
	 Machinery 7,20,386 3,25,092
	 Others 26,97,985 5,54,242
Insurance 1,96,757 2,96,471
Payment to Auditors (Refer details Below) 3,98,100 3,37,500
Printing and Stationery 82,411 37,807
Communication cost 1,05,655 1,29,514
Travelling and Conveyance 15,422 8,106
Legal and Professional Fees 29,50,060 25,79,129
Vehicle Running Expenses 4,01,891 4,02,035
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 2,60,937 5,05,668
Information Technology Expenses - 24,79,585
Other Establishment Expenses 77,442 2,73,595
Contractual Labour Charges 2,02,29,658 67,53,992
Security Charges 10,52,511 6,69,371
Directors' Sitting Fees 70,000 80,000
Total 3,01,51,074 1,58,49,992
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`

Payments to auditors Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

a)	 For audit 2,37,500 2,37,500
b)	 For taxation matters 60,000 70,000
c)	 For Certification and other services 1,00,600 30,000
d)	 For reimbursement of expenses - -
Total 3,98,100 3,37,500

Note 28 - Income taxes
Note 28.1 - Income tax recognised in profit or loss

`

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Current tax
In respect of the current year 2,75,891 71,35,385
In respect of prior years (44,460) -

2,31,431 71,35,385
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (2,34,977) (2,72,806)

(2,34,977) (2,72,806)
Minimum Alternate Tax entitlement - -
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (3,546) 68,62,579

Note 29 - Tax expense
(a)	 Amounts recognised in profit and loss

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

Current income tax  2,31,431  71,35,385 
Less: MAT Credit entitlement  -    -   
Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences  (2,34,977)  (2,72,806)
Deferred tax expense  (2,34,977)  (2,72,806)
Tax expense for the year  (3,546)  68,62,579 

(b)	 Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
`

Particulars
For the year ended March 31, 2022 For the year ended March 31, 2021

Before tax Tax (expense) 
benefit Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) 

benefit Net of tax

Items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss
Changes in revaluation surplus - - - - - -
Remeasurements of the defined benefit 
plans

5,826 1,515 4,311 (31,917) (8,879) (23,038)

5,826 1,515 4,311 (31,917) (8,879) (23,038)

Note 27 - Other expenses (Contd.)
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(c)	 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

`

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

Profit before tax 6,43,255 2,46,67,789
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (Current year 26.00% and Previous Year 27.82%) 1,67,246 68,62,579
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Adjustment for Current tax of prior year expenses allowed during CY (44,460) -
Tax on Remeasurements gains/ (Losses) of the defined benefit plans 1,515 -
Tax impact for loss incurred during the year - -
Tax on temporary differences - -
Tax rate change (1,27,847) -
Readjustment of opening deferred taxes - -
Others - -
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (3,546) 68,62,579

Note 29 - Tax expense (Contd.)
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The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current 
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
and recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of 
taxable income by each jurisdiction in which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets 
will be recovered.

Note 30 - Earnings per share (EPS)
i.	 Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders

`

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit attributable to equity Shareholders: 6,46,801 1,78,05,210
Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic earnings 6,46,801 1,78,05,210

ii.	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares

`

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Issued ordinary shares at April 1 7,50,050 10,00,050
Effect of shares issued as Bonus shares - -
Effect of Buy back of equity shares (46,630) (1,47,260)
Weighted average number of shares at March 31 for basic EPS 7,03,420 8,52,790
Effect of Dilution - -
Weighted average number of shares at March 31 after effect of dilution 7,03,420 8,52,790

Basic and Diluted earnings per share

`

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Basic earnings per share 0.92 20.88
Diluted earnings per share 0.92 20.88

Note 31 - Contingent liability and commitments
`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
Disputed Sales Tax demands 17,97,600 17,97,600
Disputed Central Excise demands 1,08,27,625 1,20,02,128

1,26,25,225 1,37,99,728

Note 32 - Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital accounts and not provided for amounting ` 5,00,000/- 
(Previous year ` Nil).

Note 33 - As required by the Ind AS 24 on the “Related Party Disclosures”, the list of related parties and their transactions is 
attached.

Note 29 - Tax expense (Contd.)
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Note 34 - The Company was set up with the objective of manufacturing Non electric water purifiers. This is the only activity 
performed and is thus also the main source of risks and returns. Accordingly, the Company has a single reportable segment. 
Further, as the Company does not operate in more than one geographical segment hence the relevant disclosures as per Ind AS 
108 are not applicable to the company.

Note 35 - In accordance with Ind AS 116 disclosures in respect of Leases are made below :
Operating Leases
Leases as Lessee
a.	� The Company has taken ceratin premises on cancellable and Non - cancellable operating lease basis. Lease payments 

in respect of non cancellable leases, the agreements contains lock in period of 3-5 years. In the agreements there are no 
terms for purchase option or any restriction such as those concerning dividend and additional debts. Lease agreement of 
the Company do not contain any variable lease payment or any residual value guarantee. The Company has not entered 
into any sub-lease agreement.

b.	� Information in respect of leases for which right- of use of assets and corresponding lease liabilities have been recognised 
are as follows:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Additions to Rights-of-use of assets during the year (Commercial premises) 50,18,221 -
Deletion to Rights-of-use of assets during the year (Commercial premises) - 6,46,862
Amortisation of right-of-use of assets during the year 54,01,994 31,21,667
Interest Expenses (unwinding of discount) on lease liabilities 5,17,599 5,41,068
Lease rental expenses relating to short term leases/ low value assets 21,243 21,245
Total Cash outflows in respect of leases (including short term leases) 63,75,204 33,92,258
Carrying amount right-of-use of assets at year end (commercial premises) 29,94,470 33,78,243

Note 36 - (a). The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in 
the preparation of these financial statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial 
assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of 
this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements, used internal and external sources 
of information and expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the 
Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

(b). The company does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

Note 37 - Ratios

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021 Variance Reason for variance more than 25%

Current Ratio 6.62 5.68 16% Not Applicable
Debt-Equity Ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
Return on Equity Ratio (%) 0.49% 9.98% -95% Company has earned less profit as 

compared to previous year
Inventory turnover ratio 4.85 7.15 -32% Due to low consumption of raw material
Trade Receivables turnover ratio 1.30 1.11 17% Not Applicable
Trade payables turnover ratio 5.98 5.91 1% Not Applicable
Net capital turnover ratio 0.89 0.98 -9% Not Applicable
Net profit ratio 0.54% 14.18% -96% Company has earned less profit as 

compared to previous year.Return on Capital employed (%) 0.61% 9.67% -94%
Return on investment (%) 9.90% 203.21% -95%
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The above ratios are calculated based on below formulas

Ratio Formula

Current ratio (times) Current assets divided by current liabilities.
Debt-equity ratio (times) Total debt divided by equity.
Debt service coverage ratio (times) Earnings available for debt service divided by debt service. Earning for debt service 

= Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other 
amortisations + Interest +other adjustments like loss on sale of PP&E etc. Debt service = 
Interest and principal repayments including lease payments.

Return on equity (%) Net profit after tax reduced by preference dividend (if any) divided by average 
shareholders equity.

Inventory turnover ratio (times) COGS divided by average inventory.
Trade receivables turnover ratio (times) Credit sales divided by average trade receivable.
Trade payable turnover ratio (times) Credit purchases divided by average trade payable.
Net capital turnover ratio (times) Sales divided by working capital. working capital =current assets minus current liabilities.
Net profit ratio (%) Net profit after tax divided by sales.
Return on capital employed (%) Earnings before interest and tax divided by capital employed. capital employed =tangible 

net worth + total debt + deferred tax liability.
Return on investment (%)* Based on time weighted rate of return (TWRR) method as follows:

Note 38 - Employee benefit obligation
As at

March 31, 2022
As at

March 31, 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current

Compensated absences 1,39,905 8,490 2,48,128 10,634
Gratuity 5,85,948 13,718 5,52,925 12,474

7,25,853 22,208 8,01,053 23,108

(i)	 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous 
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees 
last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. 
The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 5,65,399 5,79,418
Current service cost 44,654 45,946
Interest expense 37,882 45,195
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 82,536 91,141
Remeasurements
	 (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (28,958) 64,668
	 Experience (gains)/losses 23,132 (32,751)
	 (Gain)/loss from change in Demographic assumptions - -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (5,826) 31,917
Benefit payments (42,443) (1,37,077)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 5,99,666 5,65,399

Note 37 - Ratios (Contd.)
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Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Discount rate 7.15% 6.70%
Salary growth rate 5.50% 5.50%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Withdrawal rates 2.00% 2.00%
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 5 years 5 years

Assumptions regarding future mortality rates are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality :- 100% of IALM (2012-14) {PY: 100% 
of IALM (2012-14)} Ultimate as published by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA).

The actuarial valuation is carried out yearly by an independent actuary. The discount rate used for determining the present value 
of obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
Indian Government Bonds. The currency and the term of the government bonds is consistent with the currency and term of the 
defined benefit obligation.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Discount rate (0.50% increase) (29,597) (25,072)
Discount rate (0.50% decrease) 32,321 27,365
Future salary growth (0.50% increase) 32,686 27,852
Future salary growth (0.50% decrease) (30,178) (25,711)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, 
this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the 
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation 
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the 
defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

(ii)	 Defined contribution plan
The Company also has certain defined contribution plan. Contributions are made to provident fund and employee state insurance 
scheme for employees at the spcified rate as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered 
by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any 
constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is Rs 223,872/- (March 31, 
2021: Rs 226,961/-).

Note 38 - Employee benefit obligation (Contd.)
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Note 39 - Financial Instrument - Fair value and risk management
A.	 Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financials liabilities, including their levels 
of in the fair vale hierarchy :

As at March 31, 2022
Carrying amount

FVOCI - equity 
instruments

Other financial 
assets - 

amortised cost

Other financial 
liabilities - 

amortised cost

Total carrying 
amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade receivables - 5,79,13,438 - 5,79,13,438
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,23,32,056 - 1,23,32,056
Other financial assets - 28,16,645 - 28,16,645

- 7,30,62,139 - 7,30,62,139
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings - - - -
Trade payables - - 68,80,583 68,80,583
Other financial liabilities - - 31,38,765 31,38,765

- - 1,00,19,348 1,00,19,348

The Company has not disclosed the  fair values for financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, 
other bank balances, loans, borrowings, trade payable, other financial assets and financial liabilities, because their carrying 
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

As at March 31, 2021
Carrying amount

FVOCI - equity 
instruments

Other financial 
assets - amortised 

cost

Other financial 
liabilities - 

amortised cost

Total carrying 
amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade receivables - 12,51,92,492 - 12,51,92,492
Cash and cash equivalents - 19,49,825 - 19,49,825
Loans - - - -
Other financial assets - 28,16,645 - 28,16,645

- 12,99,58,962 - 12,99,58,962
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings - - - -
Trade payables - - 1,82,37,467 1,82,37,467
Other financial liabilities - - 26,89,525 26,89,525

- - 2,09,26,992 2,09,26,992

The Company has not disclosed the  fair values for financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, 
other bank balances, loans, borrowings, trade payable, other financial assets and financial liabilities, because their carrying 
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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B.	 Measurment of fair values
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
Financial instruments measured at fair value
The company does not have any Investment.

C.	 Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

	− Credit risk

	− Liquidity risk

	− Market risk

	− Interest risk

Risk management framework
The Company’s management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework.

The Company conduct yearly risk assessment activities to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles 
and obligations.

The Company has a system in place to ensure risk identification and ongoing periodic risk assessment is carried out. The Board 
of directors periodically monitors the risk assessment.

i)	 Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in financial loss.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the reporting date was:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Trade receivables 5,79,13,438 12,51,92,492
Cash and cash equivalents 1,23,32,056 19,49,825
Loans - -
Other financial assets 28,16,645 28,16,645

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region of the Company was:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Within India 5,79,13,438 12,51,92,492

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances at the reporting 
date by type of counterparty was:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Product Marketing company 5,79,13,438 12,51,92,492
Bank balances and deposits with banks 1,23,32,056 19,49,825

Note 39 - Financial Instrument - Fair value and risk management (Contd.)
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Trade receivables								     
Customer credit risk is managed as per Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, estabilishing credit limits and 
continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of 
business.

On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairement loss or gain. 
The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix 
takes into account historical experience with customers.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured as the Company does not hold collateral as security. Since the Company derives it 
significant revenue from a related party, the Company is not exposed to significant credit risk.

The age of trade and other receivables at the reporting date was:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Not due 1,10,02,007 3,69,52,912
0-30 days 84,79,146 2,21,43,029
31-90 days 2,88,34,392 2,78,09,813
more than 90 days 95,97,893 3,82,86,738

5,79,13,438 12,51,92,492

Bank balances and deposits with banks
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the company’s finance department as per Company’s policy. Investment of 
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty 
credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year 
subject to approval of the Company’s Board of directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore 
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

ii)	 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and 
undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

As at March 31, 2022
Contractual cash flows

Carrying 
amount Total 6 months or 

less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 
years

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - -
Trade payables 68,80,583 68,80,583 68,80,583 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 31,38,765 31,38,765 31,38,765 - - - -

1,00,19,348 1,00,19,348 1,00,19,348 - - - -

Note 39 - Financial Instrument - Fair value and risk management (Contd.)
i)	 Credit risk (Contd.)
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As at March 31, 2021
Contractual cash flows

Carrying 
amount Total 6 months or 

less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 
years

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - -
Trade payables 1,82,37,467 1,82,37,467 1,82,37,467 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 26,89,525 26,89,525 26,89,525 - - - -

2,09,26,992 2,09,26,992 2,09,26,992 - - - -

iii)	 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates – will affect the Company’s 
income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, 
while optimising the return.

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency payables, deposits with banks 
and borrowings. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk.

Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which purchases are 
denominated and the functional currency of Company. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Company 
is primarily exposed to foreign currency fluctuation between the USD and Indian Rupees

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk (based on notional amounts) as reported to the 
management is as follows:

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - -

- -

Sensitivity analysis
A 10% appreciation of the USD as indicated below, against Indian Rupees would have decreased gain by the amounts shown 
below:

Particulars Profit or loss

March 31, 2022
USD (10% strengthening)                      -   
March 31, 2021
USD (10% strengthening)                      -   

A 10% depreciation of the USD against Indian Rupees would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currency to 
the amounts shown above, on basis that all other variables remain constant.

Note 39 - Financial Instrument - Fair value and risk management (Contd.)
ii)	 Liquidity risk (Contd.)
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iv)	 Interest risk
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows

`

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Deposit with banks - -

- -
Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - -

- -

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased gain as at year end by the amounts 
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss

March 31, 2022
Variable-rate instruments -
Cash flow senstivity -
March 31, 2021
Variable-rate instruments -
Cash flow senstivity -

A decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have had equal but opposite effect on the amounts 
shown above, on the basis that all other variable remain constant.

Note 40 - Previous year figures have been regrouped where ever necessary.

Note 41 - Forbes Aquatech Ltd (“FATL”) and Forbes Enviro solutions Ltd (“FESL”) were subsidiaries of erstwhile Eureka Forbes 
Ltd and the ultimate parent company was Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited.

The Board of Directors of Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd and erstwhile Eureka Forbes Ltd at their Board Meeting held on September 
08, 2020, had inter alia, approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“the scheme”) under Section 230 to 232 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations made thereunder.

The Scheme, inter alia, provided for amalgamation and vesting of erstwhile Aquaignis Technologies Private Limited (“ATPL”)and 
erstwhile Euro Forbes Financial Services Limited (“EFFSL”) with and into erstwhile Eureka Forbes Limited. Further, upon the 
above part of the scheme becoming effective, amalgamation and vesting of EFL with and into Forbes and Company Limited (FCL).

Further, upon the above part of the scheme becoming effective, demerger and vesting of Demerged Undertaking (Health, 
Hygiene, Safety Products and Services Undertaking, as defined in the scheme) of FCL into Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited on 
a going concern basis.

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“the NCLT”), Mumbai vide its order dated January 25, 2022 approved/sanctioned 
the aforesaid Composite Scheme of Arrangement. Upon receipt of the certified copy of the order, the scheme was made effective 
by filing Form INC 28 with the Registrar of Companies on February 1, 2022. Further, the name of FESL has been changed to 
Eureka Forbes Ltd, vide Fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated February 11, 2022.

Based on the above events, FATL, which was a subsidiary of erstwhile Eureka Forbes Ltd has ceased to be a subsidiary as on 
January 31, 2022. Consequently, FATL has become subsidiary of Eureka Forbes Ltd (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) 
with effect from February 01, 2022.

Note 39 - Financial Instrument - Fair value and risk management (Contd.)
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Note 42 - Regulatory Disclosures
1)	� The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 

for holding any Benami property.

2)	 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

3)	 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

4)	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

5)	� The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

	 a)	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

	 b)	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

6)	� The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

	 a)	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;

	 b)	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

7)	� The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey 
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

8)	� The Company has filed monthly statements of current assets with the banks in agreement with the books of accounts.

9)	� The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company.

10)	� The Company has not made any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans that are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs 
and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

	 (a)	 repayable on demand or

	 (b)	 without specifying any terms or period of repayment



Details required under Ind AS 24 on the "Related Party Disclosures" - referred in Note 
no. 33 forming integral part of financial statement:Notes to the financial statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2022- continued.

(I) 	 Name of related Party and nature of relationship where control exists are as under :
A	 Holding Company
	 Eureka Forbes Limited (Erstwhile) - (Holding Company upto January 31, 2022)

	 Forbes & Company Ltd - Holding Company of Eureka Forbes Limited

	 Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Pvt Ltd - Holding Company of Forbes & Company Ltd.

	 Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) - (Holding Company w.e.f February 01, 2022)

B	 Other Related Parties (where transactions have taken place during the year)
	 Forbes Facility Service (P) Ltd.

C	 Company having significant influence
	 Forbes & Company Ltd (w.e.f February 01, 2022)

	 Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Pvt Ltd (w.e.f February 01, 2022)

	 Lunolux Limited (w.e.f November 22, 2021)

	 Filtrex Holdings Pte Limited

(II) 	  Transactions with Related Parties for the year ended March 31, 2022
`

Nature of Transactions

Related Party

Eureka Forbes 
Limited

Forbes Facility 
Service (P) Ltd.

Eureka Forbes 
Limited

(Erstwhile) (Formerly Forbes 
Enviro Solutions Ltd)

Purchases
Goods and Materials 1,35,14,573 - 19,50,060
Services - - -
Fixed Assets - - -

1,35,14,573 - 19,50,060
Sales
Goods and Materials 8,56,49,563 - 81,84,482
Services Rendered 1,64,69,154 806 31,18,614
Fixed Assets - - -

10,21,18,717 806 1,13,03,096
Expenses
Rent and other services 15,930 - 5,310
Repairs & Other Expenses - 9,66,706 -
Finance Charges - - -

15,930 9,66,706 5,310
Other Receipts
Other Reimbursements 60,426 - 6,47,591
Outstanding
Trade Payables - 1,01,291 -
Deposits 10,000
Trade Receivables - - 5,39,65,514
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